
REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD 
 
Venue: Town Hall,  

Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham. 

Date: Wednesday, 18th April, 2007 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Regeneration and Asset Board held on 

21st March, 2007.  (copy attached) (Pages 1 - 13) 
  

 
4. Matters arising.  
  

 
5. Minutes of a meeting of the RMBC/Leisure Joint Service Centre Project Board 

held on 30th March, 2007.  (copy attached) (Pages 14 - 17) 
  

 
6. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 The following items are likely to be considered in the absence of the press and 

public as being exempt under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended March 2006) (information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of any particular individual (including the 
Council)):- 

 
7. Business Incubation and the Brampton Centre.  (report attached) (Pages 18 - 

28) 
 Item referred by the Cabinet Member for Economic Regeneration and 

Development Services – Minute No. 246 of 19th March, 2007 refers. 
Business Development Manager, RIDO, to report. 
- to inform the Board of current developments. 

 
8. Swinton Fitzwilliam Community Centre.  (report attached) (Pages 29 - 33) 
 - to seek approval for the disposal of the above-mentioned asset. 
 

For information:- 
 
9. Date, time and venue of next meeting:  
 THURSDAY, 17TH MAY, 2007 at 10 a.m. at the Town Hall, Moorgate Street, 

Rotherham. (Please note the change of date for this meeting) 
 

 



REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 1 
 

 

REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD 
Wednesday, 21st March, 2007 

 
Present:- Councillor Smith (in the Chair); Councillors Ellis, Wardle, S. Wright and 
Wyatt.:  together with Councillor R. S. Russell (Chair, Regeneration Scrutiny Panel)   
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hussain and St. John.  
 
142. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS OF THE REGENERATION AND 

ASSET BOARD  
 

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meetings of the 
Board held on 14th and 28th February, 2007 respectively. 
 
Resolved:-  That the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

143. MATTERS ARISING  
 

 There were no matters arising from the previous minutes. 
 

144. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 Resolved:- That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended March 2006)  (information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the Council)). 
 

145. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE TOWN CENTRE DEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT BOARD HELD ON 2ND MARCH, 2007  
 

 Consideration was given to the minutes of a meeting of the Town Centre 
Accommodation Project Board held on 2nd March, 2007. 
 
Resolved:-  That the minutes be received. 
 

146. THE BIG SCREEN  
 

 Further to Minute No. 63 of the Regeneration and Asset Board held on 
18th October, 2006, the Assistant Town Centre Manager highlighted the 
matters set out in the report circulated. 
 
The report highlighted that in March 2006 the Council entered into a 
unique pilot partnership with the BBC which provided a significant 
injection of resources into the Big Screen Project. This arrangement was 
reviewed in December 2006 and was extended until the end of March 
2007 to allow a longer term agreement to be reached.  
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



2 REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 
  
 

It was reported that the BBC had now proposed an official extension of 
the partnership until March 2008.  
 
The report set out the key benefits that had arisen from the partnership 
with the BBC, with reference to the original aims and objectives of the 
project. 
 
Further to Minute No. 117 of the Regeneration & Asset Board Meeting 
held on 17th January, 2007, the report also provided an update on the 
progress regarding  the landscaping works in All Saints’ Square and the 
introduction of a ‘wrap’ on the reverse of the screen.  
 
It was explained that the main risks for the project were concerned with if 
the partnership arrangements with the BBC were to cease in that the staff 
time committed to the project by the Town Centre Management Team 
would have to include the duties currently undertaken by the Screen 
Manager, or else additional staff resources sought.  Similarly the budget 
available for this project would have to be used to sub-contract some of 
the duties which were beyond the technical capabilities of the Town 
Centre Management team, rather than being used to provide an events 
programme and to ensure the technical specification of the screen and 
software was the best available. The potential daily schedule & events 
programme would also be affected given the lack of BBC live events and 
televised programmes available. 
 
With regard to the wrap for the screen itself there was a risk that the 
designs submitted would not be appropriate for the setting.  It was 
therefore necessary to ensure that the appropriate level of guidance and 
support was given to students working on the project and that the 
appropriate officers were involved in short listing the submissions.  
 
It would also be necessary to ensure that an effective media campaign 
coincided with the project to maximise the potential positive news stories 
that could be generated from the involvement of local students in this high 
profile project.  
 
Resolved:- (1) That the proposal to extend the partnership with the BBC 
until March 2008 be supported.  
 
(2) That the progress made with regards to the design of a landscape 
scheme for the area below the screen be noted. 
 
(3) That the progress made with regards to the design of a ‘wrap’ to cover 
the back of the screen be noted. 
 

147. REDEVELOPMENT OF ST. ANN'S CAR PARK AND PROVISION OF 
TEMPORARY CAR PARKS OFF RAWSON ROAD, COTTENHAM 
ROAD AND ST. ANNS ROAD (3 NO)  
 

 The Network Regulation Engineer outlined the matters set out in the 

Page 2



REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 3 
 

 

report circulated. 
 
The report highlighted the options relating to the funding arrangements 
and locations associated with the provision of replacement temporary car 
parks following the redevelopment of St. Ann’s car park. 
 
The Board was asked to note that there had to be a realistic assumption 
about the migration of vehicles from St Ann’s car park to the proposed 
temporary car parks. This migration would be affected by factors such as 
:- 
 
(i)  Current availability of on-street parking, most notably in Eastwood 

village. 
(ii)  Current proposal by Planning & Transportation Service to 

implement Residents’ Parking Schemes. 
(iii)  Movement of existing staff to outlying districts (therefore reduced 

staff demands) 
(iv)  Unattractiveness of the temporary car parks to Town Centre 

shoppers:-  e.g:-  walking distance (reference was made to the 
poor usage of Sheffield Road Baths car park). 

 
The projected income for these car parks was based on 60% usage and, 
based on previous experience and the 4 factors outlined above, there was 
a real risk that the actual usage of these car parks may be considerably 
lower than the assumed figure.  
 
The Democratic Services Manager submitted a petition from 176 
residents of Eastwood objecting to the proposed locations of these car 
parks as they believed they would increase the risk to the local residents, 
especially the pupils of St. Ann’s School. 
 
Reference was made to the consultations undertaken relating to the 
planning application for the redevelopment of St. Ann’s Car Park when the 
views of the local residents and Ward Councillors were taken into account 
as part of the planning process. 
 
Members reviewed the position relating to the development of this site. 
 
Reference was also made to the development of the Town Centre Car 
Parking Strategy. 
 
Resolved:-  (1) That the temporary car park adjacent to Rawson Road 
and Cottenham Road (2 No) be constructed and the works be funded 
through a bid made against the Council’s Minor Strategic Capital Works 
Programme in the sum of £290,000. 
 
(2)  That the temporary car park adjacent to St Ann’s Road be 
constructed and the works be funded through a bid made against the 
Council’s Minor Strategic Capital Works Programme in the sum of 
£133,000. 

Page 3



4 REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 
  
 

 
(3)  That these temporary proposals be reviewed within the next three 
years. 
 
(4) That the funding arrangements, income generation and budget issue 
paper be reviewed by the Strategic Director for Environment and 
Development Services. 
 

148. ADDITIONAL CAPITAL COSTS FOR CASHLESS CATERING 
EQUIPMENT  
 

 The Manager, School Organisation Planning and Development, Children 
and Young People’s Services, outlined the matters set out in the report 
circulated. 
 
It was explained that the purpose of the report was to seek approval from 
the Regeneration & Asset Board with regard to additional capital funding 
for cashless catering installation in the authority’s secondary schools. This 
work was being undertaken as part of the authority’s e-government 
agenda and supported the ODPM e-Government Priorities and the 
Council's intentions for smartcard usage. 
 

The original forecast of equipment required was based on expected 
requirements. To meet the needs of the schools increases in equipment 
were necessary.  
 
The expenditure had currently been funded from the catering service 
revenue account which, as indicated in the report submitted, could not be 
sustained by the revenue account. If the funds were unavailable this 
would impact adversely on the revenue account. 
 
Resolved:- That additional funds be approved from the minor strategic 
capital investment block in the sum of £49,661 to cover the additional 
costs of cashless catering equipment required for the completion of this 
project. 
 

149. THORPE HESLEY COMMUNITY LIBRARY  
 

 The Manager, Libraries and Information Service, outlined the matters set 
out in the report circulated. 
 
The report stated that the Holy Trinity Church in Thorpe Hesley had been 
successful in raising funds for a new Community Centre in the village.  As 
part of the fund raising the Church had won a competition which provided 
sufficient additional funds to adapt the current planned building to include 
a library space.  
 
The creation of a library at Thorpe Hesley would contribute to the library 
service meeting public library service standards and, in turn, would impact 
on the Council’s performance indicators and CPA achievements. 

Page 4



REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 5 
 

 

 
It was explained that work on the Church owned building was due to 
begin in the near future, with completion in 2007-8. 
 
However, if the project did not go ahead, there would be a negative 
impact on the performance of the library service and hence the 
performance of the Council against CPA. The Service would also be 
unable to achieve the Council’s ambition of meeting all Public Library 
Service Standards. 
 
Usage of the library service within the area was currently via an ageing 
mobile library which would need to be replaced in the near future. Thorpe 
Hesley has been identified as a gap in service provision and there was 
unlikely to be another opportunity in the medium term to create additional 
library facilities within this area. 
 
Resolved:- That the implementation of a library space within the building 
be approved and a provision be made through the Minor Strategic 
Investment Block of the Capital Programme for the cost to be met. 
 

150. CAPITAL FUNDING FOR WORKS TO SUPPORT FACILITIES 
INFRASTRUCTURE -  CULTURE AND LEISURE SERVICE  
 

 The Manager, Library and Information Service, outlined the matters set 
out in the report circulated. 
 
The report requested the Regeneration and Asset Board to support a 
capital funding bid from the minor strategic pot (allocated for repairs) in 
the sum of £63,000 to fund essential and already undertaken health and 
safety works for the Culture and Leisure Service property portfolio, plus 
major works essential to keep the facilities operating for public use.  
Discussions had taken place with Corporate Finance to inform them of 
this course of action. 
 
It was pointed out that if the funding was not approved then there was a 
significant risk of an overspend on the Service’s repairs and maintenance 
budgets. This had had to be offset against the greater risks in terms of 
health and safety and reputation if the works had not been carried out. 
This could include, for instance, buildings having to close and possibly 
injury to staff and/or customers.  
 
Resolved:- That the sum of £63,000 be approved to be funded from the 
minor strategic capital fund to support the repairs that have been required 
in Culture and Leisure Service facilities. 
 

151. FORMER FERHAM ROAD PRIMARY SCHOOL  
 

 Further to Minute No.  102 of the meeting of the Regeneration and Asset 
Board held on 6th December, 2006, the HMR Manager, Rotherham West, 
outlined the matters set out in the report circulated. 

Page 5



6 REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 
  
 

 
The report highlighted the options for the future use of the above-
mentioned site. 
 
The Board was reminded that if the whole site was placed on the market a 
sale would produce a capital receipt, but market conditions could change, 
resulting in a higher or lower receipt.  However, this option would not 
address the specific affordable housing needs of the community within the 
area. 
 
If the land cross-hatched black on the plan was sold without the 
assumption of the discounted value of the land the Housing Association 
Scheme would fail to be delivered.  If the start on site (absolute deadline – 
July 2007) was not achieved the funding allocation would not be spent 
within Rotherham as there were no other sites suitable for the 
development. 
 
Currently delivery for the Approved Development Programme 2006-2008 
was on track.  However if the land in question was not allocated to this 
Scheme, the funding would potentially be lost to Rotherham and 
redistributed within the South Yorkshire area. 
 
It was essential that Rotherham and our partners successfully deliver the 
current Affordable Housing Programme, to timescales and agreed 
outputs. Failure to do so would have a negative impact upon the 
confidence of funders in Rotherham’s capacity to deliver such a significant 
programme. The success of our future bids for affordable housing 
resources would in part be judged upon our capacity and track record for 
delivery. This came at a crucial time for Rotherham MBC as it posed a risk 
to our success in the bidding process that we would soon be entering for 
resources to deliver the 2008-11 programme.  
 
It was noted that this matter had not been considered by the Cabinet 
Member for Children and Young People’s Services, who had delegated 
responsibility to agree that this asset was surplus to requirements. 
 
Resolved:- That subject to the formal approval of the Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young People’s Services, the following proposals be 
approved:- 
 
(1) That the sale, in principle, of the land cross-hatched black on the plan 
to the Housing Association, identified in the report now submitted, be 
approved. 
 
(2) That the sale be negotiated by the Director of Rotherham Investment 
and Development Office on condition that 100 % nomination rights are 
retained by the Council on the development proposal. 
 
(3)  That a specific obligation is placed on the developer to demolish the 
air raid shelter and deal with all party wall aspects with adjoining owners.  

Page 6



REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 7 
 

 

 
(4) That the Director of Legal and Democratic Services completes the 
necessary transfer documentation and registers title to the land 
 
(5) That the future use of the remainder of the site is considered in the 
light of feedback from other consultations and be reported verbally to the 
meeting. 
 

152. HOUSING MARKET RENEWAL - LAND USE  
 

 The Chairman referred to several items on this agenda which included the 
disposal of land to developers or social landlords in support of the 
Council’s Community Strategy and policies to achieve social/affordable 
housing.  Some of these reports included disposal of the land at 
discounted values in order to achieve wider regeneration objectives such 
as special need housing, eco housing, secure by design, lifetime homes 
and low cost home ownership.  These schemes were attracting 
substantial grant income to develop the sites. 
 
Reference was made to the recent change in policy whereby housing 
capital receipts were not automatically ring-fenced for housing purposes 
and the need to consider the sale of capital assets to support the 
Council’s own capital strategy. 
 
Resolved:- That a review of all such sites in the current 2006-08 Agreed 
Development Programme be submitted to a future meeting of the Board. 
 

153. FLANDERWELL AVENUE, BRAMLEY  
 

 The HMR Team Leader outlined the matters set out in the report 
circulated. 
 
The report provided details on move-on accommodation to be provided at 
the Flanderwell Avenue site, and requested approval to dispose of the 
above site for this purpose.  
 
It was reported that a sale would produce a capital receipt.  However, land 
transfer issues needed to be addressed swiftly, in order to ensure that the 
Regional Housing Board funding could be submitted and transferred 
within the timescales and, if it was resolved in favour of the 
recommendation, then a start on site could be expected, to accord with 
the Scheme’s programme for March 2007. 
 
The land and property issues would be addressed within the contract for 
sale.  In addition, the other aspects of the contracts between the two 
parties such as nomination rights and affordability would also be similarly 
secured. 
 
It was also pointed out that if the land was sold without the assumption of 
the discounted value of the land the scheme would fail, and also if the 

Page 7



8 REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 
  
 

start on site (March 2007) was not achieved, the funding allocation would 
be at risk. 
 
The Board was informed that the funding allocation had been confirmed, 
and draw down requested by the Council’s preferred partner in this 
Scheme and this committed them to deliver the programme.  However, 
delivery was dependent upon the identification and approval of suitable 
Council sites to facilitate development. These sites had already been 
identified to facilitate the current development programme. Further sites 
had been identified as part of the Garage Site Review and HRA Asset 
Mapping work undertaken by Neighbourhood Strategy Unit and HMR 
Team, to enable alternative sites to be brought forward, should any 
difficulties arise.  Should suitable sites not be agreed, the programme 
would be placed at significant risk. This also placed our partner RSL at 
risk of non-delivery of their agreed programme, which could result in grant 
clawback and loss of confidence with the Housing Corporation. The 
impact upon our partner relationships would be significant.    
 
It was therefore essential that Rotherham and our partners successfully 
deliver the current Affordable Housing Programme, to timescales and 
agreed outputs. Failure to do so would have a negative impact upon the 
confidence of funders in Rotherham’s capacity to deliver such a significant 
programme. The success of our future bids for affordable housing 
resources would in part be judged upon our capacity and track record for 
delivery.  
 
Resolved:- That the recommendation for the freehold sale of the land to 
Arches Housing, at the discount stated, and on the basis that the Council 
receives all of the benefits detailed in the report be approved. 
 

154. SHALDON GROVE, ASTON  
 

 The HMR Team Leader outlined the matters set out in the report 
circulated. 
 
The report provided details on move-on accommodation to be provided at 
the Shaldon Grove site, and requested approval to the proposed disposal 
of the site to Council’s preferred partner for this purpose.  
 
It was reported that a sale would produce a capital receipt. However, land 
transfer issues need to be addressed swiftly, in order to ensure that RHB 
funding could be submitted and transferred within the timescales and, if it 
is resolved in favour of the recommendation, then a start on site could be 
expected, to accord with Scheme’s programme for March 2007. 
 
The land and property issues would be addressed within the contract for 
sale.  In addition, the other aspects of the contracts between the two 
parties such as nomination rights and affordability would also be similarly 
secured. 
 

Page 8



REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 9 
 

 

It was pointed out that if the land was sold without the assumption of the 
discounted value of the land the scheme would fail.  If the start on site 
(March 2007) was not achieved, the funding allocation would be at risk. 
 
It was confirmed that the funding allocation had been confirmed and draw 
down requested and this committed the Council’s partner to delivery of 
the programme. The Board was advised that delivery was dependent 
upon the identification and approval of suitable Council sites to facilitate 
development. These sites had already been identified to facilitate the 
current development programme. Further sites had been identified as part 
of the Garage Site Review and HRA Asset Mapping work undertaken by 
Neighbourhood Strategy Unit and HMR Team, to enable alternative sites 
to be brought forward, should any difficulties arise. Should suitable sites 
not be agreed, the programme would be placed at significant risk. This 
also placed our partner RSL at risk of non-delivery of their agreed 
programme, which could result in grant clawback and loss of confidence 
with the Housing Corporation. The impact upon our partner relationships 
would be significant.    
 
It was therefore essential that Rotherham and our partners successfully 
delivered the current Affordable Housing Programme, to timescales and 
agreed outputs. Failure to do so would have a negative impact upon the 
confidence of funders in Rotherham’s capacity to deliver such a significant 
programme. The success of our future bids for affordable housing 
resources would in part be judged upon our capacity and track record for 
delivery. 
 
Resolved That the recommendation for the freehold sale of the land to the 
Council’s partner, Arches Housing, on the basis of discounted sale, and 
on the basis that the Council receives all of the benefits detailed in the 
report be approved. 
 

155. LAND AT CHAPEL WALK MOSQUE, ROTHERHAM  
 

 Further to Minute No. 124 of 22nd February, 2006 and Minute No. 12 of 
14th of June, 2006 of meetings of the Regeneration and Asset Board, the 
Strategic Property Manager reported further on the issues raised by 
Members in relation to the sale of land at Chapel Walk. 
 
Options for the disposal of the land were reported. 
 
In the light of the information presented, and discussion, at the meeting 
the following decision was made:- 
 
Resolved:- That the land be disposed of on the basis of Option 2, set out 
in the report now submitted, to include a covenant that the land be used 
for car parking only, and the value to be independently assessed at 
market value. 
 

156. CHURCH ROOMS AND CAR PARK, CHURCH LANE, MALTBY  

Page 9



10 REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 
  
 

 
 The Strategic Property Manager outlined the matters set out in the report 

circulated. 
 
The report outlined the options available for the future use of The Church 
Rooms and Church Rooms Car Park, Church Lane, Maltby. 
 
Resolved:- (1) That the sites continue to be managed as at present on 
terms to be agreed by the Director of Asset Management Service. 
 
(2) That the Director of Legal and Democratic Services completes the 
necessary documentation. 
 

157. LAND AT KENNETH STREET, ROTHERHAM  
 

 The Strategic Property Manager outlined the matters set out in the report 
circulated. 
 
The report sought approval for the disposal of the above-mentioned asset 
which was surplus to the requirements of the Asset Management 
Department. 
 
It was re-iterated that as with all property transactions a capital receipt 
could not be guaranteed until the sale was complete.  
 
Resolved:- (1) That approval be given to the disposal of the asset on the 
basis set out in this report. 
 
(2) That the Director of Rotherham Investment and Development Office 
negotiates the disposal. 
 
(3) That the Director of Legal and Democratic Services completes the 
necessary transfer documentation. 
 

158. 16 MAIN STREET, NORTH ANSTON  
 

 The Strategic Property Manager outlined the matters set out in the report 
circulated. 
 
The report set out options for the future use of the above mentioned site. 
 
The Board was reminded that the sale of the land would produce a capital 
receipt but there was always a danger that any land transaction may fall 
through.  
 
Resolved:- (1) That approval be given to sell the above asset on the basis 
set out in the report. 
 
(2) That the Director of Rotherham Investment & Development Office 
negotiates the terms of the disposal. 

Page 10



REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 11 
 

 

 
(3) That the Director of Legal & Democratic Services completes the 
necessary documentation. 
 

159. LAND AT DALE ROAD/GOODWIN AVENUE, RAWMARSH  
 

 The Strategic Property Manager outlined the matters set out in the report 
circulated. 
 
The report outlined the options for the disposal of the above mentioned 
site. 
 
It was reported that a sale would produce a capital receipt, but market 
conditions could change, resulting in a higher or lower receipt. If the 
SYHA scheme was accepted and the start on site date of June 2007 was 
not achieved, the funding allocation, including the Edwin Goodwin Trust 
grant, would be at risk. 
 
Resolved:- That approval be given to sell the above asset as detailed in 
Option 1 of the report. 
 
(2) That the Director of Rotherham Investment & Development Office 
negotiates the terms of the disposal. 
 
(3) That the Director of Legal & Democratic Services completes the 
necessary documentation. 
 

160. LAND AND PROPERTY:  CAPITAL RECEIPTS UPDATE  
 

 The Strategic Property Manager outlined the matters set out in the report 
circulated. 
 
The updated report highlighted changes to the forecast of capital receipts 
accruing to the General Fund resulting in a revision of the Council’s 
capital programme. 
 
It was pointed out that as with all property transactions the capital receipt 
could not be guaranteed until the sale was completed.  
 
Resolved :- That the position on the current status of the capital receipts 
which support the capital programme be noted.  
 

161. WATERWAYS STRATEGY  
 

 Further to Minute No. 223 of the meeting of the Cabinet Member for 
Economic Regeneration and Development Services held on 19th 
February, 2007, the Strategic Director of Economic and Development 
Services outlined the matters set out in the report circulated. 
 
The Board was informed that the Rotherham Waterways Strategy would 

Page 11



12 REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 
  
 

cover all main rivers and canals in Rotherham and include issues such as 
access, habitats, conservation and future maintenance. 
 
Resolved:- That the strategy implementation be noted. 
 

162. REDEVELOPMENT OF CLIFTON PARK MUSEUM  
 

 The Manager, Library and Information Service, outlined the matters set 
out in the report circulated. 
 
The report stated that the redevelopment of Clifton Park Museum took 
place over a period of nine years, from initial plans which were formulated 
in 1997 through to the end of defect liability periods for the contractors in 
2006. 
 
The Board was advised that the final account for this project indicated that 
there has been an additional cost of £5,377. The total budget for the 
project was £3,000,000 (which included project-related expenditure from 
revenue budgets whilst the Museum was closed to the public in 2003 and 
2004).  
 
It was explained that budgets for capital projects pertaining to historic 
buildings were often difficult to plan prior to commencement of works on 
site. The buildings and their original design and construction were 
sometimes unique, and unrestricted access was not possible when they 
were also open to the public and performing a function, as with the 
Museum. The condition of historic buildings could also change in the time 
delay between the initial conservation assessments, and securing funding 
and commencement of works. 
 
With the redevelopment of the Museum, careful management of the 
budget post-commencement of works allowed the Project Team to 
minimise all of the risks and uncertainties. For instance, the budget was 
able to accommodate unforeseen, but vital and expensive structural 
works to strengthen the floors and increase loadings. 
 
Resolved:- That the report be noted and an allocation of £5,377 from the 
Capital Programme’s Minor Strategic Investment Block to cover the 
additional cost on the redevelopment of the Museum be approved. 
 

 
 (The Chairman authorised consideration of the following two items to 

enable the purchases to proceed quickly) 
  
163. PROPOSED PURCHASE OF MILLFOLD HOUSE, WESTGATE, 

ROTHERHAM  
 

 The Development Promotions Manger outlined the matters set out in the 
report circulated. 
 

Page 12



REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD - 21/03/07 13 
 

 

The report detailed the purchase of Millfold House, Westgate as part of 
the Rotherham Renaissance agenda. 
 
Resolved:- That the Acquisition of the subject property on the terms 
reported be approved. 
 

164. PROPOSED PURCHASE OF RIVERSIDE PRECINCT, CORPORATION 
STREET, ROTHERHAM  
 

 The Development Promotions Manager outlined the matters set out in the 
report circulated. 
 
The report detailed the purchase of the Riverside Precinct, Corporation 
Street, Rotherham, as part of the Rotherham Renaissance agenda. 
 
Resolved:- That the Acquisition of the subject property on the terms 
reported be approved. 
 

165. DATE, TIME AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING:  
 

 Resolved:-  That the next meeting of the Board take place on 
WEDNESDAY, 18th April, 2007 at 10.00 a.m. at the Town Hall, 
Rotherham. 
 

 

Page 13



 

 1 

LEISURE/JOINT SERVICE CENTRE PROJECT BOARD 
Friday, 30th March, 2007 

 
Present:- 
 
Councillor Iain St. John Cabinet Member, Lifelong Learning, Culture  
    and Leisure (in the Chair) 
Derek Connolly  Capital Project Development Officer, Education, 
    Culture and Leisure Services 
Graham Sinclair  Director of Service, Resources & Access, Children  
    & Young People’s Services 
Phil Rogers   Strategic Leader, Culture and Leisure 
 
9/07 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Brian Barrett (Principal 

Project Manager, Environment and Development Services), Adam 
Wilkinson (Executive Director, Environment and Development 
Services), Kevin Gallacher and Kath Atkinson, Rotherham PCT. 

 
10/07 NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The notes of the previous meeting held on 12th January, 2007 were 

agreed as a correct record. 
 
11/07 PROJECT REPORT INCLUDING TIMETABLE AND FINANCIAL 

CLOSE 
 
 The Director of Service Resources & Access gave a verbal update on 

the project timetable. 
 
 Financial Close is due to take place week beginning 23rd April, 2007. 
 
 Prior to this there will be sign off from DCMS and DCLG to give their 

permission to spend the credits, both of whom are being advised by 
the Treasury and Partnerships UK. 

 
 In addition, there needs to be sign off from the Barclays Bank Credit 

Committee. 
 
 The meeting discussed the most suitable timetable in relation to 

publicity at the point of signing off the project. 
 
 The construction timetable for each stage is:- 
 
 St. Ann’s 
 
 Contractors will be on site by the end of June and will have to 

complete by the end of September, 2008. 
 
 Maltby MSC 

Agenda Item 5Page 14



 

 2 

 
 Contractors will be on site by the end of June and will have to 

complete by the end of June, 2008.  At that point the Council and PCT 
employees will be moving into the new building and other buildings.  
This will then release the remainder of the site for the building of 
Maltby Leisure Centre which will start in July 2008 and be completed 
in November, 2009. 

 
 Aston 
 
 There is an Early Works Agreement with DC Leisure and Wilmott 

Dixons which enables WD to start at Aston at the end of in April, 2007 
in order to demolish the areas that need to be removed, and erect 
temporary facilities which is a sports hall and classrooms.  Planning 
permission has now been obtained for this to proceed. 

 
 This would take place during this Summer in order to avoid the 

examination timetables and will be ready for the new School year in 
September 2007. 

 
 The Pool and Sports Hall will start in July 2007 and finish in August 

2008, again ready for the new School year. 
 
 Wath 
 
 Work is to start in November, 2007 and end in October, 2008 (around 

the half-term period). 
 
 Agreed:-  (1)  That the verbal update report be noted. 
 
 (2)  That it be noted that a Members’ Seminar on the Leisure JSC 

Projects is to take place on Tuesday, 24th April, 2007 at 9.00 a.m. 
 
12/07 TECHNICAL LEGAL AND COMMERCIAL ISSUES 
 
 The Director of Service Resources & Access gave a verbal update on 

technical, legal and commercial issues. 
 
 All necessary planning permissions had now been obtained. 
 
 An Outputs Specification and Room Data sheets have been 

completed and agreed, setting out the standards by which the pool 
can be constructed and the scheme is operated.  The Contractor’s 
proposals to meet these standards has been received, all of which will 
be complete by 23rd April, 2007 and relate to: 

 
- and construction proposals for the build 
- facilities management and life cycle 
- how the Leisure Contract is to be delivered 

 

Page 15



 

 3 

 Reference was made to the Company who is responsible for Facilities 
 Management (Emcor).  This Company has a good reputation and is 
well- known in the construction industry. 
 
 There is progress in relation to the technical aspect with regard to 
 planning issues and Wilmott Dixon have made suggestions to design 
 development. 
 
 Legal Issues 
 
 Excellent progress is being made in relation to legal issues.  The main 
 Project Agreement and Schedules are complete with a number of sub-
 contractors. 
 
 In addition, agreement had been reached with regard to the “carve 
out” of  the land at Wath from Transform Schools which would be transferred, 
in  relation to a Lease. 
 
 The Council and PCT have yet to agree its Lease arrangements with 

regard to Maltby JSC. 
 
 Agreement had been reached with regard to the Admission Bond and 

vandalism risk. 
 
 Commercial 
 
 A Payments and Performance mechanism is now agreed in relation to 

the regulations operating the scheme over its 32 years duration.  
These are the standards against which DCLG must operate against, 
which covers issues associated with the method of deducting 
payments in respect of any deviations. 

 
 Insurance and Income benchmarking arrangements was soon to be 

agreed. 
 
 Risks 
 
 The two major risks are (a) any delay in financial close which will put 

the Project back by an equal amount of time and (b) interest swap rate 
upon which the Project and financial model is signed. 

 
 Discussion took place on the need to reconfigure the Maltby site after 

the Service Centre is built and the new Leisure build is begun. 
 
 TUPE Arrangements 
 
 The meeting was informed that RMBC is presently agreeing a list of 

employees to be transferred during a two phase transfer in the 
Summer of 2008 – when St. Ann’s, Aston and Wath leisure facilities 
open. 

 

Page 16



 

 4 

 The remainder of staff will transfer in November, 2009 when Maltby 
leisure facilities open. 

 
 In terms of financial close, the list is to be agreed on 31st March, 2007 

and will protect the pay, conditions and pensions of existing 
employees, up to the time of transfer. 

 
 It is a closed scheme to existing employees. 
 
 Discussion took place on training requirements for staff.  This would 

be addressed and arranged at the appropriate time. 
 
 Agreed:-  That the verbal update report be noted. 
 
13/07 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 The Director of Service Resources & Access reported that the 

construction client role and the DCM client role will be managed by a 
combination of officers from the Children and Young People’s 
Services, Environment and Development Services and Economic 
Development Services Directorates. 

 
 Agreed:-  That after the next meeting of the Leisure/Joint Service 

Centre Project Board meeting, further update reports be submitted to 
the appropriate Cabinet Member by Derek Connolly, Capital Project 
Development Officer. 

 
14/07 DATE, TIME AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 Agreed:-  That a further meeting be held on Tuesday, 1st May, 2007, 

at 9.00 a.m. in the Town Hall. 

Page 17



Agenda Item 7Page 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



P
a

g
e
 2

5
B

y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o

c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



Page 27
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 28
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 8Page 29
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 32
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting of the Regeneration and Asset Board held on 21st March, 2007.  (copy attached)
	5 Minutes of a meeting of the RMBC/Leisure Joint Service Centre Project Board held on 30th March, 2007.  (copy attached)
	7 Business Incubation and the Brampton Centre.  (report attached)
	Brampton Incubation Centre Attachment 1, 19/03/2007 Cabinet Member for Economic Regeneration and Development Services
	Brampton Incubation Centre Attachment 2, 19/03/2007 Cabinet Member for Economic Regeneration and Development Services
	Brampton Incubation Centre Attachment 3, 19/03/2007 Cabinet Member for Economic Regeneration and Development Services

	8 Swinton Fitzwilliam Community Centre.  (report attached)
	Swinton Fitzwilliam Centre Report Plans


